

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Part XII title
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Partie XII, titre
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Parte XII, título

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

XII. Suspension, restriction or deactivation of account and termination of employment or engagement

XII. Suspension, limitation ou désactivation du compte et cessation de l'emploi ou de l'engagement

XII. Suspensión, restricción o desactivación de cuentas y terminación del empleo o la contratación

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Part XII title

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Partie XII, titre

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Parte XII, título

Amendment submitted by the worker members

Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs

Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

XII. Restriction, Ssuspension or deactivation of account and termination of employment or
engagement

XII. Limitation, Ssuspension ou désactivation du compte et cessation de l'emploi ou de
l'engagement

XII. Restricción, Ssuspensión o desactivación de cuentas y terminación del empleo o la
contratación

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 16

Each Member shall **encourage** ~~take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform~~s to make information available about the grounds for **deactivation and suspension**, when it is based on discriminatory or otherwise unjustified grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit **encourager les** ~~prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme~~s de travail numériques à **mettre à disposition des informations sur les motifs de désactivation ou de suspension**, lorsque cette **désactivation ou** suspension, ~~désactivation ou cessation~~ est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ou tout autre motif injustifié.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro ~~alentará~~ adoptará medidas para ~~prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una~~ a las plataformas digitales de trabajo a que faciliten información sobre los motivos de desactivación y suspensión, cuando tal desactivación o suspensión, ~~desactivación o terminación~~ se base en motivos discriminatorios o en otros motivos injustificados.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Inde (India)

Article 16

Each Member shall, in accordance with national law and practice, take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory ~~or otherwise unjustified~~ grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales, prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque cette suspension, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ~~ou tout autre motif injustifié~~.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro, ~~de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales,~~ adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios ~~o en otros motivos injustificados.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the)), Inde (India), Japon (Japan), Royaume-Uni de Grande-Bretagne et d'Irlande du Nord (le) (United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the)), Suisse (Switzerland), Türkiye (Türkiye)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures, according to the classification of digital platform workers' status in employment, to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory or otherwise unjustified grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures, conformément à la qualification des travailleurs des plateformes numériques au regard des statuts d'emploi, pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque cette suspension, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ou tout autre motif injustifié.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas, de acuerdo con la clasificación de la situación en el empleo de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales, para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios o en otros motivos injustificados.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 16

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 16

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Inde (India)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to establish fair, transparent and accessible procedures to govern ~~prohibit~~ the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, so that such actions are not ~~when it is~~ based on discriminatory ~~or otherwise unjustified~~ grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour mettre en place des procédures équitables, transparentes et accessibles afin de gérer ~~interdire~~ la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique ~~lorsque~~, de manière à ce que cette suspension, désactivation ou cessation ~~ces actions ne soient pas~~ est fondées sur des motifs discriminatoires ~~ou tout autre motif injustifié~~.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas ~~para~~ con el fin de establecer procedimientos justos, transparentes y accesibles ~~prohibir que rijan~~ la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, de manera que ~~cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación~~ tales acciones no se basen en motivos discriminatorios ~~o en otros motivos injustificados~~.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 16

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 16

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the worker members

Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs

Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the restriction, suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory or otherwise unjustified grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la limitation, la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque cette limitation, suspension, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ou tout autre motif injustifié.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la restricción, suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal restricción, suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios o en otros motivos injustificados.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the suspension, restriction or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory or otherwise unjustified grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension, la limitation ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque

cette suspension, limitation, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ou tout autre motif injustifié.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión, restricción o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal suspensión, restricción, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios o en otros motivos injustificados.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement, **or any other decision of equivalent detriment**, with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory or otherwise unjustified grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique, **ou toute autre décision**

entraînant un préjudice équivalent, lorsque cette suspension, désactivation, ~~ou~~ cessation ou décision est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ou tout autre motif injustifié.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, o cualquier otra decisión que genere un perjuicio equivalente, cuando tal suspensión, desactivación, ~~o~~ terminación o decisión se base en motivos discriminatorios o en otros motivos injustificados.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, ~~when it is based on discriminatory or otherwise unjustified grounds.~~

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique ~~lorsque cette suspension, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ou tout autre motif injustifié.~~

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, ~~cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios o en otros motivos injustificados.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the)), Japon (Japan)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on unlawful discriminatory ~~or otherwise unjustified~~ grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque cette suspension, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires illégaux ~~ou tout autre motif injustifié~~.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios ~~ilegales o en otros motivos injustificados~~.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Arabie saoudite (Saudi Arabia), Bahreïn (Bahrain), Émirats arabes unis (les) (United Arab Emirates (the)), États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the)), Japon (Japan), Koweït (Kuwait), Oman (Oman), Qatar (Qatar), Royaume-Uni de Grande-Bretagne et d'Irlande du Nord (le) (United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the)), Suisse (Switzerland), Türkiye (Türkiye)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory ~~or otherwise unjustified~~ grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque cette suspension, désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ~~ou tout autre motif injustifié~~.

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios ~~o en otros motivos injustificados~~.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

Article 16

Each Member shall take measures to prohibit the suspension or deactivation of a digital platform worker's account, or the termination of their employment or engagement with a digital labour platform, when it is based on discriminatory ~~or otherwise unjustified~~ grounds.

Article 16

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour interdire la suspension ou la désactivation du compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou la cessation de son emploi ou de son engagement auprès d'une plateforme de travail numérique lorsque cette suspension,

désactivation ou cessation est fondée sur des motifs discriminatoires ~~ou tout autre motif injustifié.~~

Artículo 16

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prohibir la suspensión o desactivación de la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales o la terminación de su empleo o contratación con una plataforma digital de trabajo, cuando tal suspensión, desactivación o terminación se base en motivos discriminatorios ~~o en otros motivos injustificados.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Insert in Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Insérer à l'Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Añadir en el Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the worker members
 Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

(New paragraph)

Where a digital platform worker's account is restricted, suspended or deactivated on justified grounds, each Member shall ensure that the digital labour platform provides advance notice of such restriction, suspension or deactivation to the digital platform worker.

(Nouveau paragraphe)

Lorsque le compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques est limité, suspendu ou désactivé pour des motifs justifiés, tout Membre doit veiller à ce que la plateforme de travail numérique notifie préalablement au travailleur cette limitation, suspension ou désactivation.

(Nuevo párrafo)

Cuando la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales se restrinja, suspenda o desactive por motivos justificados, todo Miembro velará por que la plataforma digital de trabajo notifique con antelación al trabajador dicha restricción, suspensión o desactivación.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Insert in Article 16
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Insérer à l'Article 16
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Añadir en el Artículo 16

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

New paragraph

Any decision to suspend, restrict or deactivate a digital platform worker's account, or terminate their employment or engagement, or any other decision of equivalent detriment shall be taken by a human being.

Nouveau paragraphe

Toute décision de suspendre, limiter ou désactiver le compte d'un travailleur des plateformes numériques ou de mettre fin à son emploi ou à son engagement, ou toute autre décision entraînant un préjudice équivalent, doit être prise par un être humain.

Nuevo párrafo

Toda decisión de suspender, restringir o desactivar la cuenta de un trabajador de plataformas digitales, o de poner fin a su empleo o contratación, o cualquier otra decisión que genere un perjuicio equivalente, será adoptada por un ser humano.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 17
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 17
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 17

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 17

~~Each Member shall, in accordance with national law and practice, take measures to ensure that digital platform workers receive timely, verifiable and easily understandable information on the terms and conditions of their employment or engagement.~~

Article 17

~~Tout Membre doit, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales, prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques reçoivent en temps utile des informations vérifiables et aisément compréhensibles sur les conditions de leur emploi ou de leur engagement.~~

Artículo 17

~~Todo Miembro adoptará, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales, medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales reciban información oportuna, verificable y fácilmente comprensible sobre sus condiciones de empleo o contratación.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 17
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 17
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 17

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 17

Each Member shall, in accordance with national law and practice, take measures to ensure that digital platform workers receive **clear** ~~timely, verifiable and easily understandable~~ information on the terms and conditions of their employment or engagement.

Article 17

Tout Membre doit, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales, prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques reçoivent ~~en temps utile~~ des informations **claires** ~~vérifiables et aisément compréhensibles~~ sur les conditions de leur emploi ou de leur engagement.

Artículo 17

Todo Miembro adoptará, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales, medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales reciban información **clara** ~~oportuna, verificable y fácilmente comprensible~~ sobre sus condiciones de empleo o contratación.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 17
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 17
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 17

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 17

Each Member shall, in accordance with national law and practice, take measures to ensure that digital platform workers receive timely, verifiable and easily understandable information on the terms and conditions of their employment ~~or engagement~~.

Article 17

Tout Membre doit, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales, prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques reçoivent en temps utile des informations vérifiables et aisément compréhensibles sur les conditions de leur emploi ~~ou de leur engagement~~.

Artículo 17

Todo Miembro adoptará, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales, medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales reciban información oportuna, verificable y fácilmente comprensible sobre sus condiciones de empleo ~~o contratación~~.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 18
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 18
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 18

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 18

~~The terms and conditions of employment or engagement of digital platform workers shall be governed by the laws and regulations of the country where the work is performed, unless otherwise provided for in national laws and regulations, international instruments or multilateral or bilateral agreements.~~

Article 18

~~Les conditions d'emploi ou d'engagement des travailleurs des plateformes numériques doivent être régies par la législation du pays où le travail est exécuté, sauf disposition contraire de la législation nationale, des instruments internationaux ou des accords multilatéraux ou bilatéraux.~~

Artículo 18

~~Las condiciones de empleo o contratación de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales se regirán por la legislación del país en que se realiza el trabajo, a menos que la legislación nacional, los instrumentos internacionales o los acuerdos multilaterales o bilaterales dispongan otra cosa.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 18
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 18
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 18

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 18

The terms and conditions of employment or engagement of digital platform workers shall be governed by the laws and regulations of the country specified contractually, as allowed under the conflict of laws principle, and in line with relevant ~~where the work is performed, unless otherwise provided for in~~ national laws and regulations, international instruments or multilateral or bilateral agreements.

Article 18

Les conditions d'emploi ou d'engagement des travailleurs des plateformes numériques doivent être régies par la législation du pays spécifié contractuellement, comme le permet le principe du conflit de lois, et conformément à où le travail est exécuté, sauf disposition contraire de la législation nationale, ~~aux des~~ instruments internationaux ou ~~aux des~~ accords multilatéraux ou bilatéraux pertinents.

Artículo 18

Las condiciones de empleo o contratación de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales se regirán por la legislación del país especificado contractualmente, conforme al principio relativo al conflicto de leyes, y de conformidad con ~~en que se realiza el trabajo, a menos que~~ la legislación nacional, los instrumentos internacionales o los acuerdos multilaterales o bilaterales aplicables ~~dispongan otra cosa~~.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114 ^e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114. ^a reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 18
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 18
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 18

Amendment submitted by the worker members
 Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

Article 18

The terms and conditions of employment or engagement of digital platform workers shall be governed by the laws and regulations of the country where the work is performed; ~~unless otherwise provided for in national laws and regulations, international instruments or multilateral or bilateral agreements.~~

Article 18

Les conditions d'emploi ou d'engagement des travailleurs des plateformes numériques doivent être régies par la législation du pays où le travail est exécuté, ~~sauf disposition contraire de la législation nationale, des instruments internationaux ou des accords multilatéraux ou bilatéraux.~~

Artículo 18

Las condiciones de empleo o contratación de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales se regirán por la legislación del país en que se realiza el trabajo, ~~a menos que la legislación nacional, los instrumentos internacionales o los acuerdos multilaterales o bilaterales dispongan otra cosa.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 18
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 18
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 18

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Inde (India)

Article 18

The terms and conditions of employment or engagement of digital platform workers shall be governed by the laws and regulations of the country where the work is performed, unless otherwise provided for in national laws and regulations, **and applicable** international instruments or multilateral or bilateral agreements.

Article 18

Les conditions d'emploi ou d'engagement des travailleurs des plateformes numériques doivent être régies par la législation du pays où le travail est exécuté, sauf disposition contraire de la législation nationale **et**, des instruments internationaux ou **des** accords multilatéraux ou bilatéraux **applicables**.

Artículo 18

Las condiciones de empleo o contratación de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales se regirán por la legislación del país en que se realiza el trabajo, a menos que la legislación nacional, y los instrumentos internacionales o ~~los~~ acuerdos multilaterales o bilaterales aplicables dispongan otra cosa.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114^e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.^a reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Part XIV title

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Partie XIV, titre

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Parte XIV, título

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

XIV. Protection of digital platform workers ~~migrants and refugees~~

XIV. Protection des travailleurs des plateformes numériques ~~migrants et des réfugiés~~

XIV. Protección de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales ~~migrantes y los refugiados~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 19
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 19
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 19

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 19

~~Each Member shall take measures to prevent abuses of, and provide adequate protection to, migrants and refugees in the course of their recruitment or engagement and their work as digital platform workers.~~

Article 19

~~Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour prévenir les abus à l'encontre des migrants et des réfugiés dans le cadre de leur recrutement ou leur engagement et de leur travail en tant que travailleurs des plateformes numériques, et leur fournir une protection adéquate.~~

Artículo 19

~~Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prevenir los abusos contra los migrantes y los refugiados en el marco de su contratación y de su trabajo como trabajadores de plataformas digitales, y para brindarles una protección adecuada.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 19
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 19
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 19

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Inde (India), Türkiye (Türkiye)

Article 19

Each Member shall, in accordance with national law and practice, take measures to prevent abuses of, and provide adequate protection to, migrants and refugees in the course of their recruitment or engagement and their work as digital platform workers.

Article 19

Tout Membre doit, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales, prendre des mesures pour prévenir les abus à l'encontre des migrants et des réfugiés dans le cadre de leur recrutement ou leur engagement et de leur travail en tant que travailleurs des plateformes numériques, et leur fournir une protection adéquate.

Artículo 19

Todo Miembro, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales, adoptará medidas para prevenir los abusos contra los migrantes y los refugiados en el marco de su contratación y de su trabajo como trabajadores de plataformas digitales, y para brindarles una protección adecuada.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 19
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 19
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 19

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 19

Each Member shall take measures to prevent abuses of, and provide adequate protection to, ~~digital platform workers~~ migrants and refugees in the course of their recruitment or engagement and their work ~~as digital platform workers~~.

Article 19

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour prévenir les abus à l'encontre des travailleurs des plateformes numériques ~~migrants et des réfugiés~~ dans le cadre de leur recrutement ou leur engagement et de leur travail ~~en tant que travailleurs des plateformes numériques~~, et leur fournir une protection adéquate.

Artículo 19

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para prevenir los abusos contra los trabajadores de plataformas digitales ~~migrantes y los refugiados~~ en el marco de su contratación y de su trabajo ~~como trabajadores de plataformas digitales~~, y para brindarles una protección adecuada.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 20
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 20
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the worker members
Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

Article 20

Each Member shall take measures to ensure that digital platform workers ~~and digital labour platforms~~ have easy access to safe, fair and effective dispute resolution mechanisms and to appropriate and effective remedies.

Article 20

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques ~~et les plateformes de travail numériques~~ aient facilement accès à des mécanismes de règlement des différends sûrs, équitables et efficaces et à des moyens de recours et de réparation appropriés et efficaces.

Artículo 20

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales ~~y las plataformas digitales de trabajo~~ tengan fácil acceso a mecanismos de solución de conflictos que sean seguros, equitativos y eficaces y a vías de recurso y reparación que sean apropiadas y eficaces.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 20
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 20
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 20

Each Member shall take measures to ensure that digital platform workers and digital labour platforms have ~~easy~~ access to ~~safe, fair and~~ effective dispute resolution mechanisms and to ~~appropriate and effective~~ remedies.

Article 20

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques et les plateformes de travail numériques aient ~~facilement~~ accès à des mécanismes de règlement des différends ~~sûrs, équitables et~~ efficaces et à des moyens de recours et de réparation ~~appropriés et efficaces~~.

Artículo 20

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales y las plataformas digitales de trabajo tengan ~~fácil~~ acceso a mecanismos de solución de conflictos ~~que sean seguros, equitativos y~~ eficaces y a vías de recurso y reparación ~~que sean apropiadas y eficaces~~.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114^e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.^a reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 20

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 20

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 20

Each Member shall take measures to ensure that digital platform workers and digital labour platforms have ~~easy~~ access to safe, fair and effective dispute resolution mechanisms and to appropriate and effective remedies.

Article 20

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques et les plateformes de travail numériques aient ~~facilement~~ accès à des mécanismes de règlement des différends sûrs, équitables et efficaces et à des moyens de recours et de réparation appropriés et efficaces.

Artículo 20

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales y las plataformas digitales de trabajo tengan ~~fácil~~ acceso a mecanismos de solución de conflictos que sean seguros, equitativos y eficaces y a vías de recurso y reparación que sean apropiadas y eficaces.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 20
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 20
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the worker members
 Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

Article 20

Each Member shall take measures to ensure that digital platform workers and digital labour platforms have easy access to safe, fair and effective dispute resolution mechanisms and to appropriate and effective remedies in the territory in which the digital platform worker resides or performs work, regardless of where the platform is established.

Article 20

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques et les plateformes de travail numériques aient facilement accès à des mécanismes de règlement des différends sûrs, équitables et efficaces et à des moyens de recours et de réparation appropriés et efficaces sur le territoire où les travailleurs des plateformes numériques résident ou effectuent un travail, indépendamment du lieu où les plateformes sont établies.

Artículo 20

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales y las plataformas digitales de trabajo tengan fácil acceso a mecanismos de solución de conflictos que sean seguros, equitativos y eficaces y a vías de recurso y reparación que sean apropiadas y eficaces en el territorio en el que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales residan o realicen su trabajo, independientemente del lugar en que esté establecida la plataforma.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 20
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 20
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 20

Each Member shall take measures to ensure that digital platform workers and digital labour platforms have easy access to safe, fair and effective dispute resolution mechanisms and to appropriate and effective remedies on par with those available to enterprises generally, and those available to workers with the same classification of status in employment, in the Member's jurisdiction, according to national law and practice.

Article 20

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques et les plateformes de travail numériques aient facilement accès à des mécanismes de règlement des différends sûrs, équitables et efficaces et à des moyens de recours et de réparation appropriés et efficaces qui soient équivalents à ceux en place pour les entreprises de manière générale et à ceux en place pour les travailleurs ayant la même qualification au regard des statuts d'emploi, dans sa juridiction, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales.

Artículo 20

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales y las plataformas digitales de trabajo tengan fácil acceso a mecanismos de solución de conflictos que sean seguros, equitativos y eficaces y a vías de recurso y reparación ~~que sean~~ apropiadas y eficaces que sean equivalentes a los que están a disposición de las empresas en general y de los trabajadores con la misma clasificación respecto de la situación en el empleo, en su jurisdicción, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Insert in Article 20
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Insérer à l'Article 20
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Añadir en el Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the worker members
Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

(New paragraph)

In taking measures under paragraph 1 of this Article, each Member shall facilitate access to an effective remedy for digital platform workers, including through judicial mechanisms and labour inspectorates.

(Nouveau paragraphe)

Lorsqu'il prend des mesures au titre du paragraphe 1 du présent article, tout Membre doit faciliter l'accès des travailleurs des plateformes numériques à des moyens de recours et de réparation efficaces, y compris par des mécanismes judiciaires et des services d'inspection du travail.

(Nuevo párrafo)

Al adoptar las medidas previstas en el párrafo 1 del presente artículo, todo Miembro facilitará a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales el acceso a vías de recurso y reparación eficaces, incluso mediante mecanismos judiciales e inspecciones del trabajo.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Insert after Article 20
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Insérer après Article 20
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Añadir después de Artículo 20

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

Each Member shall ensure that representative workers' organizations and, where they exist, organizations representing digital platform workers are able to act on behalf or in support of digital platform workers, in accordance with national law and practice.

Tout Membre doit veiller à ce que les organisations représentatives des travailleurs et, lorsqu'elles existent, les organisations représentant les travailleurs des plateformes numériques puissent agir au nom ou en soutien des travailleurs des plateformes numériques, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales.

Todo Miembro velará por que las organizaciones representativas de trabajadores y, cuando existan, las organizaciones que representen a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales puedan actuar en nombre o en apoyo de los trabajadores de plataformas digitales, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 21
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 21
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 21

Amendment submitted by the worker members
 Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

Article 21

Each Member shall take measures so that mechanisms, including labour inspection, are in place for ensuring compliance with and enforcement of relevant national laws and regulations and collective agreements.

Article 21

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures afin que des mécanismes, y compris d'inspection du travail, soient en place pour assurer le respect de la législation nationale et des conventions collectives pertinentes et le contrôle de leur application.

Artículo 21

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para que existan mecanismos, incluida la inspección del trabajo, que aseguren el cumplimiento y el control de la aplicación de la legislación nacional y de los convenios colectivos pertinentes.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 21
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 21
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 21

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

Article 21

Each Member shall take measures so that mechanisms are in place for:

(a) ensuring compliance with and enforcement of relevant national laws and regulations and collective agreements;

(b) providing digital platform workers with the possibility to contact and communicate privately and securely with each other, and to contact or be contacted by their representatives.

Article 21

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures afin que des mécanismes soient en place pour:

a) assurer le respect de la législation nationale et des conventions collectives pertinentes et le contrôle de leur application;

b) procurer aux travailleurs des plateformes numériques la possibilité de se contacter et de communiquer entre eux de manière privée et sécurisée, ainsi que de contacter leurs représentants ou d'être contactés par eux.

Artículo 21

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para que existan mecanismos que:

a) aseguren el cumplimiento y el control de la aplicación de la legislación nacional y de los convenios colectivos pertinentes;

b) ofrezcan a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales la posibilidad de ponerse en contacto y comunicarse en privado y de manera segura entre ellos, y de ponerse en contacto con sus representantes y de que estos se pongan en contacto con ellos.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 21
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 21
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 21

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:
 Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Islande (Iceland), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia),
 Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of
 Moldova (the)), Ukraine (Ukraine), EU(EU)

Article 21

Each Member shall take measures so that mechanisms are in place for:

(a) ensuring compliance with and enforcement of relevant national laws and regulations and collective agreements;

(b) ensuring that digital labour platforms provide relevant information on platform work to competent authorities and to representative workers' organizations and, where they exist, organizations representing digital platform workers.

Article 21

Tout Membre doit prendre des mesures afin que des mécanismes soient en place pour:

a) assurer le respect de la législation nationale et des conventions collectives pertinentes et le contrôle de leur application;

b) veiller à ce que les plateformes de travail numériques fournissent des informations pertinentes sur le travail via des plateformes aux autorités compétentes ainsi qu'aux organisations représentatives des travailleurs et, lorsqu'elles existent, aux organisations représentant les travailleurs des plateformes numériques.

Artículo 21

Todo Miembro adoptará medidas para que existan mecanismos que:

a) aseguren el cumplimiento y el control de la aplicación de la legislación nacional y de los convenios colectivos pertinentes;

b) aseguren que las plataformas digitales de trabajo proporcionan información pertinente sobre el trabajo en plataformas a las autoridades competentes y a las organizaciones representativas de trabajadores y, cuando existan, a las organizaciones que representen a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Part XVII title

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Partie XVII, titre

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Parte XVII, título

Amendment submitted by the employer members
Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

XVII. No less or more favourable treatment

XVII. Traitement ~~non~~ ni moins ni plus favorable

XVII. Trato ni ~~no~~ menos ni más favorable

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 22
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 22
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 22

Amendment submitted by the worker members
 Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

Article 22

Each Member shall, in implementing the Convention, take measures to ensure that digital platform workers enjoy protection no less favourable than that enjoyed by other workers ~~with the same classification of status in employment.~~

Article 22

Tout Membre doit, lorsqu'il met en œuvre la convention, prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques jouissent d'une protection qui ne soit pas moins favorable que celle dont jouissent les autres travailleurs ~~qui ont la même qualification au regard des statuts d'emploi.~~

Artículo 22

Todo Miembro, al aplicar el Convenio, adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales gocen de una protección no menos favorable de la que gozan otros trabajadores ~~con la misma clasificación respecto de la situación en el empleo.~~

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 22
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 22
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 22

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 22

Each Member shall, in implementing the Convention, take measures to ensure that digital platform workers enjoy protection no less or more favourable than that enjoyed by other workers with the same classification of status in employment, and that digital labour platforms enjoy no less or more favourable treatment compared to other enterprises.

Article 22

Tout Membre doit, lorsqu'il met en œuvre la convention, prendre des mesures pour veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques jouissent d'une protection qui ne soit ~~pas~~ ni moins ni plus favorable que celle dont jouissent les autres travailleurs qui ont la même qualification au regard des statuts d'emploi, et à ce que les plateformes de travail numériques soient traitées de manière ni moins ni plus favorable que les autres entreprises.

Artículo 22

Todo Miembro, al aplicar el Convenio, adoptará medidas para asegurar que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales gocen de una protección ~~no~~ⁱ menos ni más favorable de la que gozan otros trabajadores con la misma clasificación respecto de la situación en el empleo, y que las plataformas digitales de trabajo reciban un trato ni menos ni más favorable del que reciben otras empresas.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 23(1)
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 23, 1)
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 23, 1)

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 23

1. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in consultation with **the most** representative organizations of employers and workers ~~and, where they exist, organizations representing digital labour platforms and digital platform workers,~~ through laws and regulations, collective agreements, court decisions, a combination of these means, or in any other manner consistent with national practice.

Article 23

1. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la convention en consultation avec les organisations **les plus** représentatives des employeurs et des travailleurs ~~et, lorsqu'elles existent, les organisations représentant les plateformes de travail numériques et les travailleurs des plateformes numériques,~~ par voie de législation, de conventions collectives, de décisions de justice, par une combinaison de ces moyens ou de toute autre manière conforme à la pratique nationale.

Artículo 23

1. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en consulta con las organizaciones **más** representativas de empleadores y de trabajadores ~~y, cuando existan, con las organizaciones que representen a las plataformas digitales de trabajo y a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales~~ por medio de la legislación, los convenios colectivos, las decisiones judiciales, por una combinación de estos medios o en cualquier otra forma conforme a la práctica nacional.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(1)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 1)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 1)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

Article 23

1. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in consultation with representative organizations of employers and workers and, where they exist, organizations representing digital labour platforms and digital platform workers, through laws and regulations, ~~collective agreements, court decisions, a combination of these means,~~ or in any other manner consistent with national practice.

Article 23

1. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la convention en consultation avec les organisations représentatives des employeurs et des travailleurs et, lorsqu'elles existent, les organisations représentant les plateformes de travail numériques et les travailleurs des plateformes numériques, par voie de législation, ~~de conventions collectives, de décisions de justice, par une combinaison de ces moyens~~ ou de toute autre manière conforme à la pratique nationale.

Artículo 23

1. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en consulta con las organizaciones representativas de empleadores y de trabajadores y, cuando existan, con las organizaciones que representen a las plataformas digitales de trabajo y a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales por medio de la legislación, ~~los convenios colectivos, las decisiones judiciales, por una combinación de estos medios~~ o en cualquier otra forma conforme a la práctica nacional.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 23(1)
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 23, 1)
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 23, 1)

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

Article 23

1. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in consultation with representative organizations of employers and workers and, where they exist, organizations representing digital labour platforms and digital platform workers, through laws and regulations, collective agreements, ~~court decisions~~, a combination of these means, or in any other manner consistent with national practice.

Article 23

1. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la convention en consultation avec les organisations représentatives des employeurs et des travailleurs et, lorsqu'elles existent, les organisations représentant les plateformes de travail numériques et les travailleurs des plateformes numériques, par voie de législation, de conventions collectives, ~~de décisions de justice~~, par une combinaison de ces moyens ou de toute autre manière conforme à la pratique nationale.

Artículo 23

1. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en consulta con las organizaciones representativas de empleadores y de trabajadores y, cuando existan, con las organizaciones que representen a las plataformas digitales de trabajo y a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales por medio de la legislación, los convenios colectivos, ~~las decisiones judiciales~~, por una combinación de estos medios o en cualquier otra forma conforme a la práctica nacional.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Insert after Article 23(1)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Insérer après Article 23, 1)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Añadir después de Artículo 23, 1)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Malte (Malta), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia)

(New paragraph)

For the purpose of implementing this Convention, each Member may, taking into account national law and practice, exclude services that do not, as a necessary and essential component, organize work.

(Nouveau paragraphe)

Aux fins de la mise en oeuvre de la présente convention, tout Membre peut, compte tenu de la législation et de la pratique nationales, exclure les services pour lesquels l'organisation du travail ne constitue pas un élément nécessaire et essentiel.

(Nuevo párrafo)

A efectos de la aplicación del presente Convenio, todo Miembro podrá, habida cuenta de la legislación y la práctica nacionales, excluir los servicios para los que la organización del trabajo no sea un componente necesario y esencial.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Insert after Article 23(1)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Insérer après Article 23, 1)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Añadir después de Artículo 23, 1)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Malte (Malta), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia)

(New paragraph)

For the purpose of implementing this Convention, each Member may, taking into account national law and practice, exclude services whose purpose is to offer intermediation spaces facilitating connections between clients and digital platform workers.

(Nouveau paragraphe)

Aux fins de la mise en oeuvre de la présente convention, tout Membre peut, compte tenu de la législation et de la pratique nationales, exclure les services dont l'objectif consiste à offrir des espaces d'intermédiation facilitant la mise en relation des clients et des travailleurs des plateformes numériques.

(Nuevo párrafo)

A efectos de la aplicación del presente Convenio, todo Miembro podrá, habida cuenta de la legislación y la práctica nacionales, excluir los servicios cuyo objetivo sea ofrecer espacios de intermediación que faciliten el contacto entre los clientes y los trabajadores de plataformas digitales.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114^e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.^a reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(2)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 2)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 2)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

2. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in relation to digital labour platforms, ~~and~~ intermediaries ~~operating~~, and digital platform workers that fall within its jurisdiction in accordance with national laws ~~working, in its territory.~~

2. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la Convention à l'égard des plateformes de travail numériques, ~~et~~ des intermédiaires ~~qui mènent des activités sur son territoire ainsi que~~ ~~et~~ des travailleurs des plateformes qui relèvent de sa juridiction en application de la législation nationale ~~numériques qui travaillent sur ce territoire.~~

2. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en relación con las plataformas digitales de trabajo, ~~y~~ los intermediarios ~~que operan en su territorio, así como en relación con~~ ~~y~~ los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que ~~trabajan en ese territorio~~ se encuentran dentro de su jurisdicción de conformidad con la legislación nacional.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114 ^e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114. ^a reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 23(2)
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 23, 2)
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 23, 2)

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

2. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in relation to digital labour platforms and intermediaries operating, and digital platform workers working, in its ~~territory~~ jurisdiction, in accordance with national law and practice.

2. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la Convention à l'égard des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires qui mènent des activités dans sa ~~jurisdiction sur son territoire~~ ainsi que des travailleurs des plateformes numériques qui travaillent dans cette juridiction, conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales ~~sur ce territoire~~.

2. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en relación con las plataformas digitales de trabajo y los intermediarios que operan en su ~~territorio~~ jurisdicción, así como en relación con los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que trabajan en esa jurisdicción, de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales ~~e territorio~~.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114 ^e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114. ^a reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 23(2)
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 23, 2)
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 23, 2)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Royaume-Uni de Grande-Bretagne et d'Irlande du Nord (le) (United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the)), Suisse (Switzerland), Türkiye (Türkiye)

2. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in relation to digital labour platforms and intermediaries operating, and digital platform workers working, in its territory, unless otherwise provided in national laws and regulations, applicable international instruments or bilateral or multilateral agreements.

2. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la Convention à l'égard des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires qui mènent des activités sur son territoire ainsi que des travailleurs des plateformes numériques qui travaillent sur ce territoire, sauf disposition contraire de la législation nationale ou des instruments internationaux ou accords bilatéraux ou multilatéraux applicables.

2. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en relación con las plataformas digitales de trabajo y los intermediarios que operan en su territorio, así como en relación con los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que trabajan en ese territorio, a menos que la legislación nacional, los instrumentos internacionales o acuerdos bilaterales o multilaterales aplicables dispongan otra cosa.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114^e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.^a reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(2)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 2)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 2)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

États-Unis d'Amérique (les) (United States of America (the))

2. Each Member shall implement the provisions of the Convention in relation to digital labour platforms and intermediaries operating, and digital platform workers working, in its territory, unless under national law the Member lacks jurisdiction to do so.

2. Tout Membre doit mettre en œuvre les dispositions de la Convention à l'égard des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires qui mènent des activités sur son territoire ainsi que des travailleurs des plateformes numériques qui travaillent sur ce territoire, à moins que, en application de la législation nationale, il ne soit pas compétent pour ce faire.

2. Todo Miembro aplicará las disposiciones del Convenio en relación con las plataformas digitales de trabajo y los intermediarios que operan en su territorio, así como en relación con los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que trabajan en ese territorio, a menos que en virtud de la legislación nacional el Miembro carezca de competencia para hacerlo.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the employer members
Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

3. Where ~~the use of~~ intermediaries ~~are involved~~ ~~is permitted~~, Members shall determine and allocate the respective responsibilities of digital labour platforms and intermediaries to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Convention.

3. Lorsque ~~il est permis d'avoir recours à~~ des intermédiaires ~~interviennent~~, les Membres doivent déterminer et répartir les responsabilités respectives des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires de sorte à assurer le respect des dispositions de la convention.

3. Cuando ~~esté permitido el recurso a~~ ~~intervengan~~ intermediarios, los Miembros determinarán y atribuirán las responsabilidades respectivas de las plataformas digitales de trabajo y de los intermediarios a fin de asegurar el cumplimiento de las disposiciones del Convenio.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchèque (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

3. Where the use of intermediaries is permitted, Members shall ~~determine and allocate the respective responsibilities of~~ require digital labour platforms and intermediaries to cooperate and clarify their respective responsibilities to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Convention.

3. Lorsqu'il est permis d'avoir recours à des intermédiaires, les Membres doivent ~~déterminer et répartir les responsabilités respectives~~ exiger des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires qu'ils coopèrent et clarifient leurs responsabilités respectives de sorte à assurer le respect des dispositions de la convention.

3. Cuando esté permitido el recurso a intermediarios, los Miembros ~~determinarán y atribuirán las responsabilidades respectivas~~ exigirán a ~~de~~ las plataformas digitales de trabajo y ~~de~~ a los intermediarios que cooperen y aclaren sus respectivas responsabilidades a fin de asegurar el cumplimiento de las disposiciones del Convenio.

114th Session of the International Labour Conference	Geneva, June 2026
114e session de la Conférence internationale du Travail	Genève, juin 2026
114.ª reunión de la Conferencia Internacional del Trabajo	Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the platform economy	Article 23(3)
Convention concernant le travail décent dans l'économie des plateformes	Article 23, 3)
Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la economía de plataformas	Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the employer members
 Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
 Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

3. Where the use of intermediaries is permitted, Members shall determine and allocate the respective responsibilities of digital labour platforms and intermediaries in accordance with national law and practice, to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Convention.

3. Lorsqu'il est permis d'avoir recours à des intermédiaires, les Membres doivent déterminer et répartir les responsabilités respectives des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires conformément à la législation et à la pratique nationales, de sorte à assurer le respect des dispositions de la convention.

3. Cuando esté permitido el recurso a intermediarios, los Miembros determinarán y atribuirán las responsabilidades respectivas de las plataformas digitales de trabajo y de los intermediarios de conformidad con la legislación y la práctica nacionales, a fin de asegurar el cumplimiento de las disposiciones del Convenio.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the worker members

Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs

Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

3. Where the use of intermediaries is permitted, Members shall determine and allocate the respective responsibilities of digital labour platforms and intermediaries to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Convention, including, where appropriate, through joint and several liability, and ensure that digital platform workers performing work via intermediaries enjoy protection no less favourable than that enjoyed by digital platform workers employed by or engaged to work by digital labour platforms.

3. Lorsqu'il est permis d'avoir recours à des intermédiaires, les Membres doivent déterminer et répartir les responsabilités respectives des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires de sorte à assurer le respect des dispositions de la convention, y compris, s'il y a lieu, au moyen d'une responsabilité conjointe et solidaire, et veiller à ce que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques qui exécutent un travail en passant par des intermédiaires jouissent d'une protection qui ne soit pas moins favorable que celle dont jouissent les travailleurs des plateformes numériques employés ou engagés pour travailler par des plateformes de travail numériques.

3. Cuando esté permitido el recurso a intermediarios, los Miembros determinarán y atribuirán las responsabilidades respectivas de las plataformas digitales de trabajo y de los intermediarios a fin de asegurar el cumplimiento de las disposiciones del Convenio, incluso, cuando proceda, mediante la responsabilidad solidaria, y velarán por que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que realizan trabajo a través de intermediarios gocen de una protección no menos favorable de la que gozan otros trabajadores de plataformas digitales empleados o contratados para trabajar por plataformas digitales.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the following Government members:

Amendement proposé par les membres gouvernementaux suivants:

Enmienda presentada por los miembros gubernamentales siguientes:

Albanie (Albania), Allemagne (Germany), Autriche (Austria), Belgique (Belgium), Bulgarie (Bulgaria), Chypre (Cyprus), Croatie (Croatia), Danemark (Denmark), Espagne (Spain), Estonie (Estonia), Finlande (Finland), France (France), Grèce (Greece), Hongrie (Hungary), Irlande (Ireland), Islande (Iceland), Italie (Italy), Lettonie (Latvia), Lituanie (Lithuania), Luxembourg (Luxembourg), Macédoine du Nord (la) (North Macedonia), Malte (Malta), Monténégro (Montenegro), Norvège (Norway), Pays-Bas ((Royaume des)) (Netherlands (Kingdom of the)), Pologne (Poland), Portugal (Portugal), République de Moldova (la) (Republic of Moldova (the)), Roumanie (Romania), Slovaquie (Slovakia), Slovénie (Slovenia), Suède (Sweden), Tchéquie (Czechia), Ukraine (Ukraine)

3. Where the use of intermediaries is permitted, Members shall determine and allocate the respective responsibilities of digital labour platforms and intermediaries to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Convention. Members shall take appropriate measures to ensure that digital platform workers who have a contractual relationship with an intermediary enjoy the same level of protection, pursuant to this Convention, as digital platform workers who have a direct contractual relationship with a digital labour platform.

3. Lorsqu'il est permis d'avoir recours à des intermédiaires, les Membres doivent déterminer et répartir les responsabilités respectives des plateformes de travail numériques et des intermédiaires de sorte à assurer le respect des dispositions de la convention. Les Membres doivent prendre des mesures appropriées pour veiller à ce que

les travailleurs des plateformes numériques qui ont une relation contractuelle avec un intermédiaire bénéficient du même niveau de protection au titre de la présente convention que les travailleurs des plateformes numériques qui ont une relation contractuelle directe avec une plateforme de travail numérique.

3. Cuando esté permitido el recurso a intermediarios, los Miembros determinarán y atribuirán las responsabilidades respectivas de las plataformas digitales de trabajo y de los intermediarios a fin de asegurar el cumplimiento de las disposiciones del Convenio. Los Miembros adoptarán medidas apropiadas para que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que tengan una relación contractual con un intermediario gocen del mismo nivel de protección, en virtud del presente Convenio, que los trabajadores de plataformas digitales que tengan una relación contractual directa con una plataforma digital de trabajo.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Insert after Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Insérer après Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Añadir después de Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the worker members

Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs

Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

(New paragraph)

Each Member shall develop and implement measures for labour inspection and enforcement with due regard for the special characteristics of the platform economy, in accordance with national laws and regulations.

(Nouveau paragraphe)

Tout Membre doit établir et mettre en œuvre des mesures en matière d'inspection du travail et de contrôle de l'application, en tenant dûment compte des caractéristiques particulières de l'économie des plateformes, conformément à la législation nationale.

(nuevo párrafo)

Todo Miembro formulará y pondrá en práctica medidas de inspección laboral y de control de la aplicación, prestando debida atención a las características especiales de la economía de plataformas, de conformidad con la legislación nacional.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Insert after Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Insérer après Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Añadir después de Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the worker members
Amendement proposé par les membres travailleurs
Enmienda presentada por los miembros trabajadores

(New paragraph)

This Convention does not affect more favourable provisions applicable to digital platform workers under other international labour Conventions.

(nouveau paragraphe)

La présente convention n'affecte pas les dispositions plus favorables applicables aux travailleurs des plateformes numériques en vertu d'autres conventions internationales du travail.

(nuevo párrafo)

El presente Convenio no afecta a las disposiciones más favorables que sean aplicables a los trabajadores de plataformas digitales en virtud de otros convenios internacionales del trabajo.

114th Session of the International Labour
Conference

Geneva, June 2026

114e session de la Conférence internationale
du Travail

Genève, juin 2026

114.ª reunión de la Conferencia
Internacional del Trabajo

Ginebra, junio 2026

Convention concerning decent work in the
platform economy

Insert after Article 23(3)

Convention concernant le travail décent
dans l'économie des plateformes

Insérer après Article 23, 3)

Convenio sobre el trabajo decente en la
economía de plataformas

Añadir después de Artículo 23, 3)

Amendment submitted by the employer members
Amendement proposé par les membres employeurs
Enmienda presentada por los miembros empleadores

(New paragraph)

Measures taken by a Member to implement this instrument should not be used as a
criterion, basis or evidence for reclassification or to establish a presumption of
employment.

(Nouveau paragraphe)

Les mesures prises par un Membre pour mettre en œuvre le présent instrument ne
devraient pas être utilisées comme un critère, un motif ou une preuve à l'appui d'une
requalification ou d'une présomption d'emploi.

(Nuevo párrafo)

Las medidas adoptadas por un Miembro para aplicar el presente instrumento no se
utilizarán como criterio, fundamento o prueba para la reclasificación de los trabajadores o
para establecer la presunción de laboralidad.